
 

 
Agenda compiled by: 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Telephone No: 
 

 
Harriet Speight  
 
 
 
0113 37 89954 

 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
1 

 

 

 

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds, LS1 1UR on 

Friday, 30th August, 2019 at 4.30 pm 
 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
D Blackburn - Farnley and Wortley; 

J Blake (Chair) - Middleton Park; 

Amanda Carter - Calverley and Farsley; 

R Charlwood - Moortown; 

D Cohen - Alwoodley; 

D Coupar - Temple Newsam; 

S Golton - Rothwell; 

H Hayden - Temple Newsam; 

W Kidger - Morley South; 

J Lewis - Kippax and Methley; 

J Pryor - Headingley and Hyde Park; 

A Scopes - Beeston and Holbeck; 

F Venner - Kirkstall; 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

2 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 15.2 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 15.2, written 
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting) 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2  To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3  If so, to formally pass the following 
resolution:- 
 

RESOLVED – That the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 

 



 

 
3 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
AND OTHER INTERESTS 
 
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2000 and paragraphs 13-18 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct. Also to declare 
any other significant interests which the Member 
wishes to declare in the public interest, in 
accordance with paragraphs 19-20 of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence from the 
meeting. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 
 
To receive and approve the minutes of the meeting 
held on 24th June 2019. 
 

1 - 2 

7   
 

  ESTABLISHING A NORTH YORKSHIRE AND 
WEST YORKSHIRE JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (VASCULAR 
SERVICES) 
 
To consider the report of the City Solicitor that 
introduces proposals to appoint a mandatory North 
Yorkshire and West Yorkshire Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  
 

3 - 12 

8   
 

  TIME AND DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting will take place 15th October 2019 
at 2 pm 
 

 



 

 
4 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

   THIRD PARTY RECORDING 
 
Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable 
those not present to see or hear the proceedings 
either as they take place (or later) and to enable 
the reporting of those proceedings.  A copy of the 
recording protocol is available from the contacts 
named on the front of this agenda. 
 
Use of Recordings by Third Parties– code of 
practice 
 
a) Any published recording should be 

accompanied by a statement of when and 
where the recording was made, the context 
of the discussion that took place, and a 
clear identification of the main speakers and 
their role or title. 

b) Those making recordings must not edit the 
recording in a way that could lead to 
misinterpretation or misrepresentation of the 
proceedings or comments made by 
attendees.  In particular there should be no 
internal editing of published extracts; 
recordings may start at any point and end at 
any point but the material between those 
points must be complete. 

 

 

 



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting to be held on Friday, 30th August, 2019 

 

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY, 24TH JUNE, 2019 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor J Blake in the Chair 

 Councillors D Blackburn, D Cohen, 
D Coupar, S Golton, H Hayden, W Kidger, 
J Lewis, J Pryor, M Rafique and A Scopes 

 
 

1 Appeals against refusal of inspection of documents  
 

There were no appeals against the refusal of inspection of documents.  
 

2 Exempt Information - possible exclusion of the press and public  
 

There were no resolutions to exclude the public. 
 

3 Late items  
 

There were no late items. 
 

4 Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary and Other Interests  
 

There were no declarations of interest. 
 

5 Apologies for absence  
 

Apologies were received from Councillors Amanda Carter, Venner and 
Charlwood. Councillor Rafique was in attendance as substitute. 
 

6 Minutes of the last meeting  
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on the 15th May 2019 be 
approved as a correct record. 
 

7 Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel  
 

The Head of Governance and Scrutiny support introduced the report of the 
that presented the Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) recommendations 
to the Authority in respect of the Members’ Allowances Scheme. 
 
The Chair advised the committee that the IRP recommendations were 
provided to Committee at this stage, to ensure that Members were aware of 
the proposals and had opportunity to comment, prior to consideration at Full 
Council on 10th July 2019. 
 
RESOLVED – That the following be recommended to Full Council: 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting to be held on Friday, 30th August, 2019 

 

a) Basic, special responsibility and dependent carers’ allowances be 
increased each October in line with the headline pay increase 
negotiated through the National Joint Council for Local Government 
Employees and that this indexation continue until June 2023. 
 

b) The rate of Special Responsibility Allowance for the Independent Co-
opted Member of the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 
should equate to 2% of the Leader of Council’s SRA. 

 
c) The Special Responsibility Allowance for the Chair of the Climate 

Change Advisory Committee should equate to 40% of the Leaders 
SRA but that this be reviewed by the Panel again in 12 months’ time. 

 
d) The Special Responsibility Allowance for the Shadow Chair of the 

Climate Change Advisory Committee should equate to 20% of the 
Leaders SRA but that this be reviewed by the Panel again in 12 
months’ time. 
 

Councillor J Lewis joined the meeting at 1:10 pm. 
 

8 Date and Time of Next Meeting  
 

The next meeting will take place at 15th October 2019 at 2 pm. 
 
The meeting ended at 1:20 pm. 

Page 2



 

Report author: Steven Courtney 

Tel: 0113 37 88666 

 
Report of City Solicitor  

  
Report to General Purposes Committee 
 
Date: 30 August 2019 
 
Subject: Establishing a North Yorkshire and West Yorkshire Joint Health Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee (Vascular Services) 
 

Are specific electoral wards affected?   Yes  No 

If yes, name(s) of ward(s):  

Has consultation been carried out?   Yes  No 

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration?  

 Yes  No 

Is the decision eligible for call-in?   Yes  No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes  No 

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number:  

Appendix number:  

 
 
1. Purpose of this report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to ask the General Purposes Committee to consider 
and make recommendations to Full Council to: 

(a) Appoint a mandatory North Yorkshire and West Yorkshire Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee;  

(b) Delegate relevant functions (in accordance with the Committee’s terms of 
reference), as set out in Appendix 1 of this report; and,  

(c) Appoint members to the new committee from the Council’s Scrutiny Board 
(Adults, Health and Active Lifestyles). 

2. Background information 

2.1 The Local Authority (Public health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health 
Scrutiny) Regulations 2013 (the Regulations) provide for NHS bodies to consult with 
the appropriate local authorities where there are any proposed substantial 
developments or variations in the provisions of health services in the area(s) of a 
local authority under consideration.   

Page 3

Agenda Item 7



2.2 In consulting with the appropriate local authorities, NHS bodies must provide the: 

(a) Proposed date by which a decision as to whether or not to proceed with the 
proposal is intended to be taken; and, 

(b) Date by which the appropriate local authority must provide any comments on the 
proposed development or variation in the provision of health services.  

2.3 In addition, NHS bodies must: 

(a) Inform the local authority of any changes to the proposed dates (set out in 
paragraph 2.2 (above)); and, 

(b) Publish the proposed dates and any subsequent changes to those dates. 

 
Joint overview and scrutiny committees 

2.4 The Regulations also make provision for two or more local authorities to appoint a 
(discretionary) joint committee to discharge relevant health scrutiny functions from 
those local authorities, subject to any terms and conditions considered appropriate. 

2.5 Where NHS bodies consult more than one local authority in relation to a specific 
proposed substantial development or variation in the provision of health services, 
those local authorities must appoint a (mandatory) joint overview and scrutiny 
committee for the purposes of the consultation.   

2.6 In those circumstances, it is only the established joint overview and scrutiny 
committee that may: 

(a) Make comments on the proposal under consideration. 

(b) Require the provision of information about the proposal under consideration; or 

(c) Require a member or employee of the relevant NHS body to attend before it to 
answer questions in connection with the consultation and the proposal under 
consideration. 

3. Main issues 

3.1 NHS England (Specialised Commissioning) has advised the Chair of the Scrutiny 
Board (Adults, Health and Active Lifestyles) that is has under consideration 
proposed changes to regional vascular services; and is likely to propose a service 
change that will see the development of a single regional service for specialised 
vascular care across West Yorkshire.  This is likely to be based on a model of two 
dedicated arterial centres. 

3.2 Due to existing patient flows, the proposals are likely to involve some movement of 
patient activity across West Yorkshire and have some implications for patients 
across some areas of North Yorkshire.   

3.3 NHS England (Specialised Commissioning) has identified these proposed changes 
are likely to be substantial; therefore the affected local authorities are required to 
appoint a (mandatory) joint overview and scrutiny committee for the purposes of this 
consultation.  The affected local authorities being: 

 Bradford Council 

 Calderdale Council 

 Kirklees Council 

 Leeds City  Council 

Page 4



 North Yorkshire County Council 

 Wakefield Council 
 

3.4 NHS England (Specialised Commissioning) have advised Chairs of other Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees across West Yorkshire and North Yorkshire 
authorities of the details set out above in paragraphs 3.1.to 3.3.  

3.5 Proposed terms of reference for a North Yorkshire and West Yorkshire Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Vascular Services) have been developed in 
conjunction with each of the relevant authorities.  These proposed terms of 
reference are presented at Appendix 1.   

3.6 It should be noted that at the time of writing this report, the following details have 
not yet been confirmed: 

 The exact timing of any planned public consultation;  

 The date by which NHS England (Specialised Commissioning) plans to make 
a decision as to whether or not to proceed with the proposal; and, 

 The date by which any comments on the proposed changes must be made. 
 

3.7 By appointing to a (mandatory) joint overview and scrutiny committee at this time, it 
allows those affected local authorities to remain agile and respond quickly when 
required to do so.   

3.8 It is proposed that each participating authority appoints two members to the 
JHOSC. 

3.9 In terms of Leeds City Council representatives, it is proposed to seek Council 
approval for the appointment of two members from the Scrutiny Board (Adults, 
Health and Active Lifestyles) – one being the Chair of the Scrutiny Board and the 
other being a representative of the main opposition group.  This provides political 
balance to the Council’s appointment.    

Power of Referral 

3.10 In certain circumstances, local authorities may refer proposals for substantial 
developments or variations to the Secretary of State.  Such circumstances are 
where a health scrutiny body considers: 
 

 It is not satisfied with the adequacy of content of the consultation.  

 It is not satisfied that sufficient time has been allowed for consultation. 

 It considers that the proposal would not be in the interests of the health service 
in its area. 

 It has not been consulted, and it is not satisfied that the reasons given for not 
carrying out consultation are adequate.  

3.11 It should be noted that any referral to the Secretary of State is considered to be an 
exceptional action; exercised only after attempts to resolve any matters locally have 
been exhausted.  This includes allowing reasonable time for NHS bodies to address 
and mitigate concerns expressed by health scrutiny bodies.   

3.12 Health scrutiny bodies are required to advise NHS bodies of the intention to 
exercise the ‘power of referral’ and the associated timescales.  In making a referral 
to the Secretary of State, health scrutiny bodies must provide:  

 

Page 5



 An explanation of the proposal to which the report relates.  

 An explanation of the reasons for making the referral.  

 Evidence in support of the reasons for the referral.  

 Where the proposal is referred because of inadequate consultation, the 
reasons why the health scrutiny body is not satisfied of its adequacy.  

 Where the proposal is referred because there was no consultation (for 
reasons relating to safety or welfare of patients or staff), reasons why the 
health scrutiny body is not satisfied that the reasons given for the lack of 
consultation are adequate.  

 Where the health scrutiny body believes that proposals are not in the 
interests of the health service in its area, a summary of the evidence 
considered, including any evidence of the effect or potential effect of the 
proposal on the sustainability or otherwise of the health service in the area.  

 An explanation of any steps that the health scrutiny body has taken to try to 
reach agreement with the relevant NHS body.  

 Evidence that the health scrutiny body has complied with the general 
requirements when considering proposals for substantial changes or 
development of services.  .  
 

Joint committees and the power of referral 

3.13 Where joint health overview and scrutiny committee arrangements are being 
established; the delegation of the power of referral is a discretionary element to be 
determined by each participating local authority.  The terms or scope of that 
delegation is also determined by each participating local authority.   

3.14 Once delegated to a joint committee, the power of referral (within the agreed terms 
or scope) cannot then be exercised by any of the individual local authorities that has 
delegated that function.  

3.15 It should be noted that only one participating local authority has to delegate its 
power of referral for that to be exercisable by an established joint committee.  

3.16 In circumstances where a participating local authority retains its power of referral; 
should a situation arise whereby that participating authority subsequently seeks to 
make a referral to the Secretary of State, that authority must comply with the 
relevant elements of the regulations associated with making such referrals – as 
detailed in paragraph 3.12 above. 

3.17 It is proposed to delegate the Council’s power of referral to the North Yorkshire and 
West Yorkshire Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Vascular Services), 
in line with the proposed terms of reference presented at Appendix 1. 

Support arrangements 

3.18 There are a number examples of a collaborative approach being taken across West 
Yorkshire and across Yorkshire and the Humber in relation to proposed health 
service developments of changes in provision.   

3.19 Where other joint health overview and scrutiny arrangements have been 
established, a lead authority has been identified to Chair those joint committees and 
to provide the necessary support arrangements on behalf of all the participating 
authorities.  The lead authority has tended to be identified by agreement between 
the participating authorities as the authority most affected by the proposals – in 
terms of the physical location of services and/or where local populations are most 
likely to be impacted by the proposals.   

Page 6



3.20 In establishing the mandatory North Yorkshire and West Yorkshire Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Vascular Services), it is proposed to adopt a 
similar approach to identifying the lead authority through collective discussion with 
all the participating local authorities. 

3.21 The lead authority is likely to be influenced by the precise nature of the proposals, 
once these are received from NHS England (Specialised Commissioning).  

3.22 The proposed terms of reference do not cover matters of procedure.  However, for 
transparency, it is possible that one of the first items for the mandatory JHOSC to 
consider could be the procedure rules to be adopted.  These would likely be those 
of the authority taking the lead in terms of chairing and supporting the JHOSC.  

4. Corporate considerations 

4.1 Consultation and engagement 

4.1.1 The following members have been consulted on the proposed arrangements and 
terms of reference for the mandatory North Yorkshire and West Yorkshire Joint 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 

o The Leader of Council 

o The Deputy Leader of Council / Executive Member for Resources 

o The Executive Member for Health, Wellbeing and Adults. 

o The Chair of Scrutiny Board (Adults, Health and Active Lifestyles) 

o Group Leaders 
 
4.1.2 Feedback to date suggests those consulted are content with the details set out in 

this report, the proposed terms of reference and associated arrangements.  

4.2 Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration 

4.2.1 There are no implications arising from this report and the proposed establishment of 
a mandatory North Yorkshire and West Yorkshire Joint Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.  Any specific implications associated with the proposed service 
changes will be considered by the joint committee – once established. 

4.3 Council policies and best council plan 

4.3.1 There are no implications arising from this report and the proposed establishment of 
a mandatory North Yorkshire and West Yorkshire Joint Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.  Any specific implications associated with the proposed service 
changes will be considered by the joint committee – once established. 

 
Climate emergency 

4.3.2 Establishing a mandatory North Yorkshire and West Yorkshire Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the purposes set out at Appendix 1, will 
reduce the need to attend meetings across each of the participating local authorities 

Page 7



(also set out at Appendix 1) – thus reducing the potential number of meetings and 
associated use of natural resources.   

4.3.3 Any specific climate emergency implications associated with the proposed service 
changes will be considered by the joint committee – once established 

4.4 Resources and value for money 

4.4.1 Resources to support the work of the mandatory JHOSC will be provided from 
within the existing establishment and support arrangements across the participating 
local authorities – set out at Appendix 1.  

4.5 Legal implications, access to information, and call-in 

4.5.1 The legal framework and regulations associated with the establishment of a 
mandatory North Yorkshire and West Yorkshire Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee are set out elsewhere in this report.   

4.5.2 There are no specific access to information implications arising from the report.  As 
a council function the decision is not eligible for Call In.  

4.6 Risk management 

4.6.1 As set out elsewhere in the report, by delegating the power to refer matters to the 
Secretary of State to the mandatory North Yorkshire and West Yorkshire Joint 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee, this function cannot then be exercised by 
Council or its committees in relation to those specific matters set out at Appendix 1.  

5. Recommendations 

5.1 General Purposes Committee is asked to: 
 

5.1.1 Note the content and details presented in this report. 
 

5.1.2 Make the following recommendations to full Council: 

 That Council resolves to appoint a mandatory North Yorkshire and West 
Yorkshire Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee together with the 
authorities set out at Appendix 1 

 That Council approves the terms of reference for the mandatory North Yorkshire 
and West Yorkshire Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee set out at 
Appendix 1 

 That Council delegates relevant functions, as set out in Appendix 1, which shall 
be exercisable by the mandatory North Yorkshire and West Yorkshire Joint 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee, subject to the terms and conditions 
specified.   

 That Council agrees to appoint the following members from the Council’s 
Scrutiny Board (Adults, Health and Active Lifestyles) be appointed as the 
Council representatives to serve on the mandatory North Yorkshire and West 
Yorkshire Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee:  

Page 8



o Councillor Helen Hayden and Councillor Graham Latty. 

6. Background documents1  

6.1 None 

 

                                            
1 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 9



 

 

 

Page 10



 
 

North Yorkshire and West Yorkshire  

Mandatory Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

(Vascular Services) 

Terms of Reference 

 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 
The North Yorkshire and West Yorkshire Mandatory Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (the JHOSC) is a joint committee appointed under Regulation 30 of the Local 
Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 
2013/218. 
 
The participating authorities are: 
 

 Bradford Council 

 Calderdale Council 

 Kirklees Council 

 Leeds City  Council 

 North Yorkshire County Council 

 Wakefield Council 
 
The participating authorities authorise the JHOSC to discharge the following overview and 
scrutiny functions in relation to the planning, provision, operation and delivery of vascular 
services across the footprint of the joint committee: 
 

 Receive and consider the relevant NHS body consultation2 proposals related to the 
substantial development / variation in the provision of vascular services; and in 
particular review and scrutinise:   
 
o Any matter relating to the planning, provision, operation and delivery of vascular 

services and specifically (but not exclusively) consider and take account of the: 
 

 Impact of the proposals on patients, patients families and the public; 
 Views of local people, service users and/or their representatives; 
 Impact on the local health economies and the local economies in general, 

including any financial implications. 
 

o The arrangements made by relevant NHS bodies to secure patient access to 
appropriate hospital and community services, associated with vascular services, 
including the quality and safety of such services. 

 
o How the proposed changes to vascular services support the delivery of local Health 

and Wellbeing Strategies across the footprint of the joint committee and improving 
both the health of the local populations and the provision of health care services to 
that population. 

 
o The arrangements made by relevant NHS bodies for consulting and involving 

patients and the public regarding the proposed changes to vascular services.    

                                            
2 Any informal question raised by an NHS body or health service provider as to whether a proposed 
development or variation is in the opinion of an authority substantial; or whether a proposed development or 
variation will have an impact on the health service in the area of an authority will be a matter for individual 
participating authorities to respond to. 

Page 11



 

 Require the provision of all relevant information associated with vascular services, as 
identified by the Joint Committee.   
 

 Require a member or employee of a relevant NHS body to attend before the Joint 
Committee to answer questions in connection with the planning, provision, operation 
and delivery of vascular services, including consultation on the proposed changes. 

 

 Prepare and make comments / recommendations on the proposed changes to 
vascular services consulted on. 
 

 Make recommendations on the proposed changes to vascular services to: 
 

o Any of the participating local authorities represented on the Joint Committee;  
o Relevant NHS bodies (including relevant health service providers); and, 
o Any other relevant bodies identified by the Joint Committee. 

 

 Receive notice of any disagreement from relevant NHS bodies and to take reasonable 
steps to resolve such disagreement. 
 

 Prepare and present a report and recommendations to the Secretary of State on the 
proposed changes to vascular services across the footprint of the joint committee 
(subject to agreement of all participating local authorities). 
 

 
 
 

Page 12


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the last meeting
	7 Establishing a North Yorkshire and West Yorkshire Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Vascular Services)

